
Date Distributed: November 18, 2019 

3820 COLONIAL BLVD, SUITE 101 | FORT MYERS, FL 33966 | 239-690-7100 

HERITAGE PALMS 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING 

AGENDA PACKET 



2



   
  

www.heritagepalmscdd.com 
 
 

Heritage Palms CDD Meeting Agenda 
November 25, 2019 at 8:00 AM 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Approval of the Agenda        
3. Audience Comments on Agenda Items 
4. Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 28, 2019     
5. Attorney 
6. Engineer 
7. Old Business 

A. North Boundary Fence Project update 
i. Revised proposal 

B. Bio Treatment Measurement Data Lakes 10 & 14 
C. Aerator Repairs update 
D. Sidewalk/Driveway Paver update 
E. Storm Water Management System Inspection Results 

8. New Business  
A. Solitude Business Responsiveness 
B. King Palm Fence Repairs 
C. Spike Rush Width Map / Log 
D. Lake L-6 Fence Repair Proposal 

9. Field Manager  
A. Field Report for November 2019  
B. Follow-up 

i. Drainage System Map      
10. District Manager     

A. Financial Statements 
i. Month Ending October 31, 2019        

B. Follow-up 
i. ADA Compliant Website 
ii. FEMA Update 

11. H.O.A. Report 
12. Supervisor Reports, Requests and Comments 
13. Audience Comments 
14. Adjournment 
 
 

Next Meeting: January 27, 2020 at 8:00 AM 

3



1 
Unapproved Minutes 
Monday, 10/28/19 

DRAFT 1 
MINUTES OF MEETING 2 

3 
The following is a summary of the minutes and actions taken at the Heritage Palms 4 

Community Development District (CDD) Board of Supervisors meeting.  5 
6 

HERITAGE PALMS 7 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 8 

9 
The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Heritage Palms Community 10 

Development District was held on Monday, October 28, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. at the Heritage Palms 11 
Golf and Country Club at 10420 Washingtonia Palm Way in Fort Myers, Florida. 12 

13 
Present and constituting a quorum were: 14 

15 
Stan Switzer Chairman  16 
Paul Schafer Vice Chairman  17 
Al O'Brien Assistant Secretary 18 
Mike Whitten Assistant Secretary 19 
Fred DeCotis Assistant Secretary 20 

21 
Also present were: 22 

23 
Calvin Teague District Manager 24 
Chris Dudak Assistant to the District Manager 25 
Sam Marshall District Engineer 26 
Residents 27 

28 
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call 29 

30 
The meeting was called to order and the District Manager called the roll. All Board 31 

members were present. Also present were District Engineer Sam Marshall and the District 32 
Manager’s Assistant, Chris Dudak. 33 

34 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Agenda 35 

36 
The Agenda was presented and approved. 37 

38 
On MOTION by Supervisor Whitten, seconded 39 
by Chairman Switzer, with all in favor, the 40 
Agenda was approved as presented.  41 

42 
THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments on 43 

Agenda Items 44 
45 

There being none, the next Order of Business followed. 46 
47 

4



October 28, 2019   Heritage Palms CDD 

 
 2 
Unapproved Minutes 
Monday, 10/28/2019 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Approval of Meeting Minutes 48 
from September 23, 2019 49 

  50 
 The Regular Meeting Minutes were presented and approved.  51 
 52 

On MOTION by Vice Chairman Schafer, seconded 53 
by Supervisor Whitten, with all in favor, the Regular 54 
Meeting Minutes of September 23, 2019 were 55 
approved as presented.   56 
 57 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Attorney 58 
 59 
 There being none, the next Order of Business followed. 60 
 61 
SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Engineer 62 
 63 
 The District Engineer reported that he is working on finishing the annual NPDES Report.  64 
 65 
SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Old Business          66 
 67 
 A. North Boundary Fence Project Update 68 
 69 

The District Manager updated the Board that the application for the permit has been 70 
submitted and it could take up to four weeks for the permit to arrive. Once the permit 71 
arrives, they will begin this project.  72 

 73 
B. Perimeter Fence Repairs Update 74 
 75 

 The District Manager reported that all the repairs have been completed.  76 
 77 
C. Bio Treatment Lakes 10 & 14 Update 78 
 79 
The District Manager update the Board that the treatments for Lakes 10 and 14 80 
will begin in November.  81 
 82 
The Board discussed the treatments Lakes 15 and 33 are receiving. They 83 
requested information regarding how those lakes were before the treatments and 84 
after, in order to evaluate whether the treatments were effective.  85 
 86 
D. Aerator Repairs Update 87 
 88 
The District Manager reported that the compressor on Lake 17 has been repaired. 89 
He also reported that an air line between Lakes 11 and 12 needs to be replaced 90 
but a start date has not been received yet.  91 

 92 
The Board discussed their disappointment in the service they are receiving from 93 
Solitude. They requested staff to research other firms that do this type of work, as 94 
they are considering obtaining estimates from other companies.  95 

5



October 28, 2019   Heritage Palms CDD 

 
 3 
Unapproved Minutes 
Monday, 10/28/2019 

 96 
The Board requested that Solitude attend the next Board meeting to discuss the 97 
issues they have been having with the level of service they are receiving.  98 
 99 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS    New Business 100 
 101 

A. Spike Rush Width Discussion 102 
 103 
The District Manager notified the Board that the Field Manager is creating a map 104 
that will identify the width of the Spike Rush on each lake within the community. 105 
He stated that the map will be ready in time for the December meeting.  106 

 107 
 B. Storm Water Management System Inspection Proposal 108 
 109 

A proposal was received from MRI for a storm water management system inspection for 110 
$6,500. The District Manager stated that it has been approximately three years since the 111 
last inspection. Therefore, the Board approved this proposal from MRI. The Board asked 112 
that the report from the last inspection and the report from this inspection be presented 113 
for analysis. 114 

 115 
On MOTION by Vice Chairman Schafer, seconded 116 
by Supervisor Whitten, with all in favor, the 117 
proposal from MRI totaling $6,500 for a storm water 118 
management system inspection was approved.   119 

 120 
 C. Sidewalk/Driveway Paver Discussion 121 
 122 

The District Manager presented a list of homeowners that will be receiving a letter 123 
regarding their sunken driveways. He also presented an example of the letter that will be 124 
sent out to these homeowners. 125 

 126 
NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS    Field Manager 127 
 128 
 A. Field Report for October 2019 129 

 130 
The Board reviewed the Field Report with questions and comments as follows: 131 

 132 
• The District Manager stated that a couple of washouts were identified, and they will 133 

be obtaining estimates to have these repaired.  134 
• The asphalt at Heritage Palms Blvd. and Six Mile Cypress is pulling apart and the 135 

Board asked that this get fixed.  136 
• The Board discussed the vegetation that was cut by Lake 6 by a non-resident, in 137 

order to gain access to the community. As this was not the first time that this has 138 
happened, the Board decided to have the fencing extended into the lake to prevent 139 
this from occurring in the future. 140 

• It was discussed that the grate for the catch basin near Lakes 11 and 12 is rusting 141 
out and needs to be replaced. The Board approved the grate replacement for $725. 142 

 143 

6



October 28, 2019   Heritage Palms CDD 

 
 4 
Unapproved Minutes 
Monday, 10/28/2019 

On MOTION by Supervisor Whitten, seconded by 144 
Supervisor O’Brien, with all in favor, the grate 145 
replacement near Lakes 11 and 12 is approved for 146 
$725.   147 

 148 
TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   District Manager 149 
 150 
 A. Financial Statements 151 
 152 
  i. Month Ending September 30, 2019 153 
 154 
      Financials Statements were presented and accepted. 155 
 156 

On MOTION by Supervisor DeCotis, 157 
seconded by Vice Chairman Schafer, with 158 
all in favor, the financials for period ending 159 
September 30, 2019 were accepted.     160 

 161 
 B. Follow-up 162 
 163 
  i. ADA Compliant website 164 
 165 
  The District Manager updated the Board that the website is progressing. 166 
 167 
  ii. FEMA Update 168 
 169 

The District Manager updated the Board that everything has been submitted to 170 
FEMA and now they are waiting for the final approval. 171 

 172 
ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   H.O.A. Report 173 
 174 
 There being none, the next Order of Business followed.  175 
 176 
TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Reports, 177 

Requests and Comments 178 
 179 
  Supervisor Whitten commented that he was unsure when the sidewalk cleaning project 180 
is going to take place. Therefore, the Board asked that the Field Manager update them on this 181 
topic. 182 
 183 
 Vice Chairman Schafer discussed the water sample test results briefly. He also 184 
discussed a method of removing algae by placing wood chips into a steel cage and placing the 185 
steel cage into the water. He discussed this as a possible treatment for the lakes within the 186 
community, once he has had a chance to research this treatment more in depth.  187 
 188 
 189 
 190 

7



October 28, 2019   Heritage Palms CDD 

 
 5 
Unapproved Minutes 
Monday, 10/28/2019 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Audience Comments 191 
 192 
 Joe Barrett, a resident, discussed installing a fountain in the lake near where he lives. 193 
The Board explained that in order for a fountain to be installed the HOA would have to pay for 194 
the installation and maintenance of the fountain.  195 
  196 
FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS   Adjournment 197 
 198 
 There being no further Orders of Business, and  199 
 200 

On MOTION by Vice Chairman Shafer, 201 
seconded by Supervisor O’Brien, with all in 202 
favor, the meeting was adjourned at 10:03 a.m.  203 
 204 

 205 
Next Meeting:  November 25, 2019 at 8:00 a.m. 206 
 207 
 208 
_________________________ ____________________________ 209 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chair/Vice Chair 210 

8



9



 

10



Homeowner Street Number Street City State Zip Driveway / Sidewalk Condition Letter Sent Date Response grind or raise
Lucinda Tota 10539 Curry Palm Lane Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
James & Barbara Panther 7936 Tiger Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 repaired repaired
Ralph & Karen Gack 7966 Tiger Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Cynthia Ward 7978 Tiger Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
David & Dorothy Slovak 7990 Tiger Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Steven & Kathleen Hall 8038 Tiger Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Jayne Faust 8056 Tiger Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
John & Andrea Binder 7981 Gator Palm Drive Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 spoke with Chris P grind
Jan Marie Basic 7885 Go Canes Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 LETTER RETURNED, fwd 11-13-19 grind
Robert Cox & Jerri Ann Grimes 7310 Heritage Palms Estates Drive Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Richard & Debra Huxley 7328 Heritage Palms Estates Drive Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Mark Debord & Diane Snyder 7334 Heritage Palms Estates Drive Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Real & Kathy Renaud 11040 Seminole Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 raise
Robert Hetzel & Marilyn Glowacki 11052 Seminole Palm Way Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 raise
Paticia Solberg 11204 King Palm Court Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 LETTER RETURNED, fwd 11-13-19 grind
Barbara Barlow 10507 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 raise or grind
Robert Jackson 11030 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
John & Anna Tobiczyk 11042 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Bernhardts Wine Plam LLC 11072 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
Thomas Guzik 11078 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind
James & Erika Macdougall 11084 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 spoke with Chris P grind
Kent & Gail Ross 11096 Wine Palm Road Fort Myers FL 33966 Sunken Driveway 10/25/2019 grind

11



Lake # Spikerush Width Lake # Spikerush Width

Lake #1 5-7 feet Lake #25 Approx. 5 feet

Lake #2 15-22 feet Lake #26 Approx. 15 feet

Lake #3 20-25 feet Lake #27 Approx. 5 feet

Lake #4a 10-15 feet Lake #28 10-15 feet

Lake #4b 20-23 feet Lake #29 10-15 feet

Lake #5a 10-15 feet Lake #30a Approx. 5 feet

Lake #5b Approx. 20 feet Lake #30b Approx. 10 feet

Lake #6a 10-15 feet Lake #30c 10-15 feet

Lake #6b 15-17 feet Lake #30d Approx 25 feet

Lake #7 10-15 feet Lake #31 None

Lake #8 None Lake #33a 10-15 feet

Lake #9a Approx. 10 feet Lake #33b 20-25 feet

Lake #9b Approx. 15 feet

Lake #10 Approx. 5 feet L-1 10-15 feet

Lake #11 15-17 feet L-2 10-15 feet

Lake #12 7-10 feet L-3 5-7 feet

Lake #13 7-10 feet L-4 5-7 feet

Lake #14 Approx. 15 feet L-5 Approx. 10 feet

Lake #15 15-17 feet L-6 15-20 feet

Lake #17 10-15 feet L-7 10-15 feet

Lake #19 10-15 feet L-8 10-15 feet

Lake #20 5-10 feet L-9 10-15 feet

Lake #21a Approx. 5 feet L-11 10-15 feet

Lake #21b Approx. 5 feet L-12 Approx. 15 feet

Lake #21c Approx. 5 feet L-13 10-15 feet

Lake #22 7-10 feet L-14 5-10 feet

Lake #23 10-15 feet L-15 5-10 feet

Lake #24 10-15 feet L-17 5-10 feet

Heritage Palms CDD Littoral Plants in Lake

Blue Map Lines = Up to 15' Red Map Lines = 15' & Over

12



 



14



0 
 

 

Heritage Palms 
CDD 
FIELD MANAGEMENT REPORT FOR NOVEMBER 
2019 

15



1 
 

Heritage Palms CDD 
 

Community Field Services – Field Management Report 
Site Inspection on 11/05/19 

 

1. Lake Management: 
 

a. Lake Maintenance: Most of the lakes remain in fair to good shape this month. 
Lake & Wetlands has heavily treated most of the shoreline weeds, submerged 
weeds and algae issues mentioned below. Below is the rating sheet for November. 
 

 

Grand Total Combined Ratings

142-329 = Room for Improvement

Lake #
Algae Shoreline 

Weeds
Submerged 

Weeds
Total 

Individual 
Score

Aerators / 
Fountains

Lake #1 3 3 3 9 Working
Lake #2 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #3 3 3 3 9 Working
Lake #4 1 2 3 6 Working
Lake #5 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #6 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #7 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #8 3 3 3 9 N/A
Lake #9 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #10 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #11 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #12 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #13 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #14 2 3 3 8 Working
Lake #15 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #17 2 3 3 8 Working
Lake #19 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #20 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #21 2 3 3 8 Working
Lake #22 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #23 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #24 2 2 3 7 Working
Lake #25 3 3 3 9 Working
Lake #26 3 2 3 8 Working
Lake #27 3 3 3 9 Working
Lake #28 3 2 3 8 N/A
Lake #29 3 3 3 9 Working
Lake #30 2 2 3 7 N/A
Lake #31 1 2 3 6 N/A
Lake #33 2 2 3 7 Working

Phase 2
L-1 2 2 2 6 Working
L-2 2 3 2 7 Working
L-3 3 2 3 8 Working
L-4 3 2 3 8 Working
L-5 3 3 3 9 Working
L-6 2 2 3 7 Working
L-7 2 2 3 7 Working
L-8 2 2 3 7 Working
L-9 2 2 3 7 Working
L-10
L-11 1 2 3 6 No
L-12 1 2 3 6 Working
L-13 2 3 2 7 Working
L-14 2 3 3 8 Working
L-15 3 2 3 8 Working
L-16
L-17 3 3 3 9 Working

Canals
C-7 2 2 2 6 N/A

C-15 2 2 2 6 N/A

353

Trash in lake

Weak boil. No valve box

Trash in lake

Weak boil

Heavy weed treatments

No valve box

Weeds within rip rap - Low

Valves semi-rusty

 Rusted valve rail. Heavy weed treatments.
Rusted valve rail. Heavy weed treatments. 

Valve box present, Weeds on bulkhead

Rusted valve box

Trash in lake

Rusted valve box

Rusted valve box

No valve box

Comments

Weak boil NE side
Fresh coconuts in lake
Fresh coconuts in lake

Trash in lake
Primrose on bank mowing area

HERITAGE PALMS
LAKE RATING SHEET FOR FIELD REPORT

November 6th 2019

Lake Ratings Individual Lake Ratings
1 = Unsatisfactory 3 = Unsatisfactory 141 = Unsatisfactory
2 = Room for Improvem4-6 = Room for Improvemen
3 = Satisfactory 7-9 = Satisfactory 330-423 = Satisfactory

16



2 
 

b. Dissolved Oxygen (DO) Tests: Next readings will be taken during February 
2020.  
 

c. Littoral Plants:  
 

i. This month we were asked to evaluate the spike rush widths within all the 
lakes and that task has been completed. The list below shows what the 
average spike rush width was within each lake. Some lakes have multiple 
measurements as there were some major width differences within the lake. 
We will present a map at the next meeting for the Board to review. 
 

Lake # Spike Rush Width   Lake # Spike Rush Width 
          
Lake #1 5-7 feet   Lake #25 Approx. 5 feet 
Lake #2 15-22 feet   Lake #26 Approx. 15 feet 
Lake #3 20-25 feet   Lake #27 Approx. 5 feet 
Lake #4a 10-15 feet   Lake #28 10-15 feet 
Lake #4b 20-23 feet   Lake #29 10-15 feet 
Lake #5a 10-15 feet   Lake #30a Approx. 5 feet 
Lake #5b Approx. 20 feet   Lake #30b Approx. 10 feet 
Lake #6a 10-15 feet   Lake #30c 10-15 feet 
Lake #6b 15-17 feet   Lake #30d Approx. 25 feet 
Lake #7 10-15 feet   Lake #31 None 
Lake #8 None   Lake #33a 10-15 feet 
Lake #9a Approx. 10 feet   Lake #33b 20-25 feet 
Lake #9b Approx. 15 feet       
Lake #10 Approx. 5 feet   L-1 10-15 feet 
Lake #11 15-17 feet   L-2 10-15 feet 
Lake #12 7-10 feet   L-3 5-7 feet 
Lake #13 7-10 feet   L-4 5-7 feet 
Lake #14 Approx. 15 feet   L-5 Approx. 10 feet 
Lake #15 15-17 feet   L-6 15-20 feet 
Lake #17 10-15 feet   L-7 10-15 feet 
Lake #19 10-15 feet   L-8 10-15 feet 
Lake #20 5-10 feet   L-9 10-15 feet 
Lake #21a Approx. 5 feet   L-11 10-15 feet 
Lake #21b Approx. 5 feet   L-12 Approx. 15 feet 
Lake #21c Approx. 5 feet   L-13 10-15 feet 
Lake #22 7-10 feet   L-14 5-10 feet 
Lake #23 10-15 feet   L-15 5-10 feet 
Lake #24 10-15 feet   L-17 5-10 feet 

 
ii. Hybrid cannas are scheduled to be cut in December (Annual Cutting).  

 

 

17



3 
 

d. Shoreline Weeds: Weeds observed this month included:   
 

i. Torpedo Grass in Lakes: 2, 4-13, 15, 19, 20, 22-24, 26, 28, 30-33, L-6 thru 
L-9, L-11, L-12, L-15 & Canals C-7 & C-15. Low presence. 
 

ii. Alligator weed in Lakes: 10 & 11. Low presence.  
 

iii. Spatterdock in Lakes: L-1. Medium presence. Heavy treatments observed. 
 

iv. Salvinia in Lakes: 7, 10 & 20. Low presence. 
 

v. Water lettuce in Lakes: L-3, L-4, L-7 thru L-9, L-12. Low presence. 
Heavy treatments observed.    

 
e. Submerged Weeds: 

 
i. Chara in Lakes: L-1, L-2 & L-13. Low presence. Treatment observed.  

  
ii. Hydrilla in Lakes: Canals C-7. Medium presence. Treatments observed. 

 
f. Algae: Algae issues observed this month included the following: 

i. Planktonic algae: 4. Low density.  
 

ii. Filamentous algae: (Treatments observed in most Lakes) 
 

1. Low density in Lakes: 7, 9-15, 21, 24, 30, L-1 & L-2, L-6 thru L-9, 
L-11, L-13, L-14 & Canals C-7 and C-15.  

 
2. Medium density in Lakes: 17, 20 & 33.  

   
3. High density in Lakes: 31 & L-12.   

 
                      Lake 31                                                 Lake L-12 

   
 
 

18



4 
 

Bio Block treatments help reduce the muck within the lakes that eventually leads 
to algae blooms. The chart below shows which lakes are being treated and the 
frequency. No signs of improvement were observed during this inspection.   
 

LAKE TREATMENT 
FREQUENCY 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

15 Quarterly February May August November 
33 Quarterly February May August November 
10 Monthly         
14 Monthly         

 
g. Fish: No nuisance fish were observed this month.  

 
h. Trash: Trash was observed floating in several lakes and canals this month. 

     
i. Lake Aeration: The issues reported below will be reported to Vertex / Solitude.  

 
i. The semi-annual maintenance for the aerator systems is scheduled for 

February & August 2019. 
 

ii. Weak boils observed on Lakes 2 (North side), L-8 & L-15: Valves need 
adjustments. 

 
iii. Lake 3: We received several complaints this past month of the compressor 

being very noisy for this lake. Solitude went ahead and replaced the lid 
seal and installed a new style muffler onto the compressor. The unit was 
very quiet upon arrival.   

 
iv. Lake L-17: Compressor been replaced by Solitude.  

 
         New Muffler for Lake 3                New Compressor for Lake L-17 

   
 
 
 
 

19



5 
 

v. Lake L-11: Air station not working / broken pvc pipe. Solitude has met 
with Greg Kriesch and reviewed the area where the trench work will be 
completed. Trenching should be completed within the next couple of 
weeks.  

 

    
 

j. Lake Fountains:  
 

i. Lake 22: Joney Jelly reported that the lights are flashing at night. We went 
ahead and put in a service call to Florida Fountains.   

   
ii. Holiday lenses (green color) are installed each year by December 1st and 

removed by January 5th. We’ll be reminding Florida Fountains of this 
later this month.  
  

k. Shoreline Landscaping / Grass Clippings:  
 

i. At least 100 coconuts were observed in Lakes 3 & 4. The coconut palms 
along the lake banks were recently pruned and the contractor didn’t 
remove any of the coconuts that fell into the lake. Greg Kriesch informed 
us that MW Landscape does the maintenance in this area. We’ll reach out 
and inform them that they need to pick up the coconuts.   
 

   
 

ii. Several Royal Palm tree branches were observed in Lake L-14. The 
branches should be removed.  

 

20



6 
 

l. Bulkheads / Rip Rap: Weeds within the bulkheads and rip rap need to be treated 
on Lake: 27. 
 

m. Lake Bank Erosion: No new concerns were observed this month. The list below 
identifies future areas to be addressed.  

 

High Priority 
 

Red 
Lake 4 West Bank 

 

Lake 8 Between Buildings 9 & 10 and 14 
 

   

Medium Priority 
 

Yellow 
Lake 2 Behind large rip rap south side 

 

Lake 15 Behind the condo building 
 

Lake 19 Washout between Buildings 10487 / 10497 Washingtonia Palm 
Way 

 

Lake 24 Washout on the side of 10417 Curry Palm Lane 
 

Lake L-3 Washout behind the water control structure 
 

Lake L-4 Washout behind 11210 King Palm Court 
 

Lake L-17 Washout on east side near large headwall. 
 

   

Low Priority 
 

Blue 
Lake 33 Near the golf hole. 110 LF vertical erosion 

 

Lake 2 Washout near rip rap on center island north side. 
 

Lake L-3 Vertical erosion behind 11245 / 11247 Wine Palm. 70 LF 
 

  
2. Preserves:  

 
a. The next semi-annual preserve maintenance event is scheduled to be completed 

later this month. Treatment will consist of herbicide application and selective 
removal of FLEPPC category I & II exotic/nuisance species within designated 
areas. Treatment of melaleuca, Brazilian pepper, climbing cassia, torpedo grass, 
West Indian marsh grass, wetland night shade, and primrose is Aquatic Weed 
Control’s main focus. The next semi-annual maintenance event is anticipated for 
May 2020. 
 

b. The Morning Glory vines that are growing within the Cypress trees on the 
preserve edge along Go Canes Way will be treated during this upcoming 
maintenance event.  

 
c. The next semi-annual vegetation maintenance along the preserve fences is 

schedule for later this month.    
 
 
 
 

21



7 
 

3. Roadways:  
 

a. Asphalt: We are currently getting an estimate to repair the micro-surfacing at the 
intersection of Heritage Palms Blvd & 6 Mile Cypress that is pulling apart.  

 
b. Pavers: No concerns observed this month. 

  
c. Signage / Landscaping:  

 
i. One of the red/white roadway reflectors for Sago Palm Way was found on 

the side of the road. We’ll go ahead and will have it replaced. 
 

ii. One of the dual amber roadway reflectors near the cart crossing on 
Washingtonia Palm Way in front of the clubhouse is missing. We don’t 
have any dual amber reflectors in stock and will need to order one.  

 

   
 

d. Curbing / Gutters: No concerns observed this month.  
 

4. Sidewalks: 
 

a. We were asked to look at the sidewalk on Wine Palm Road just north of the canal 
this month for any issues and we came across the following:  
 

i. 10549 Wine Palm: Where the sidewalk meets the driveway there is a 
section of concrete that is chipped up. We can smooth out the area with a 
grinder.  
 

ii. 10537 Wine Palm: There is a small hole at one of the concrete joints. We 
can fill this in with additional concrete mix.  

 

   

22



8 
 

b. Sidewalks are scheduled to be cleaned by Premier Pressure Cleaning starting on 
the week of November 11th.  
 

c. Sidewalks that meet at driveways with safety concerns were looked at again and 
most sidewalks can be grinded down however there is a risk of scuffing up the 
pavers with the grinding wheel.    

 
Street 
Number 

Street Driveway / Sidewalk 
Condition 

Action 

10539 Curry Palm Lane Sunken Driveway Grind 
7936 Tiger Palm Way Sunken Driveway Repaired 
7966 Tiger Palm Way Sunken Driveway Grind 
7978 Tiger Palm Way Sunken Driveway Grind 
7990 Tiger Palm Way Sunken Driveway Grind 
8038 Tiger Palm Way Sunken Driveway Grind 
8056 Tiger Palm Way Sunken Driveway Grind 
7981 Gator Palm Drive Sunken Driveway Grind 
7885 Go Canes Way Sunken Driveway Grind 
7310 Heritage Palms 

Estates Drive 
Sunken Driveway Grind 

7328 Heritage Palms 
Estates Drive 

Sunken Driveway Grind 

7334 Heritage Palms 
Estates Drive 

Sunken Driveway Grind 

11040 Seminole Palm 
Way 

Sunken Driveway Raise 
Pavers 

11052 Seminole Palm 
Way 

Sunken Driveway Raise 
Pavers 

11204 King Palm Court Sunken Driveway Grind 
10507 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind or 

Raise 
Pavers 

11030 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind 
11042 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind 
11072 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind 
11078 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind 
11084 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind 
11096 Wine Palm Road Sunken Driveway Grind 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



9 
 

5. CDD Perimeter Fences:  
 

a. North Fence Install Update: Sunstate Fence is still waiting for the permit to be 
approved. Banks Engineering has surveyed the property line and we’ll be onsite 
during the week of November 18th to cut down all the overgrown vegetation.   
 

   
 

b. King Palm Fence Repairs: We’ve reached out to a tree company to give us an 
estimate to cut down the leaning ficus tree and to remove the stump. Sunstate 
Fence has already been onsite and has provided us an estimate to replace 60 feet 
of fence.   
 

   
 

c. Ten additional No Trespassing signs have been ordered for the perimeter fences.  
 

d. Lake L-6 / Ranchette Rd.: We met with Sunstate Fence to look at options to fence 
in this area and we came up with two options. The first option is to extend the 
ends of the fence into the water several feet and the second option is to extend the 
fence over the water control structure and leave a 1-foot opening underneath it for 
water flow. Sunstate Fence will be providing us estimates for both options.  

 
Option 1 – Extend Fence into Water   Option 2 – Run Fence over WCS 

   

24



10 
 

6. Storm Water Drainage System:  
 

a. Overflow Weirs: No concerns observed this month. All weirs were properly 
functioning.  

 
b. Catch Basins: We were informed that someone had poured something into the 

catch basin between the garage units 2500 & 2600 McArthur Palm. The basin was 
looked at and we don’t believe it was paint. The substance that was left behind is 
chalkier like joint compound.  

 

    
   

c. Roadway Inlets:  
 

i. The catch basin at the northeast corner of the Lodge’s parking lot was 
semi-buried with pine straw. We went ahead and cleared off the structure.  
 

ii. The catch basins in front of 7993 Gator Palm Drive both had moderate 
debris built up around them. The structures should be kept clear.  

 

   
 

d. Canals: No new concerns observed this month.  
 

e. Gutter Pans: Silt was observed built up within the gutter pans at the cart crossing 
on King Palm Way and at the intersection of Wine Palm Road and King Palm 
Way. As Premier Pressure Washing makes their way through the community 
these areas will be cleaned up. Pictures are on the following page.   

   

25



11 
 

   
 

f. Inter-Connect Pipes: No concerns observed this month. 
 

g. Swales: 
 

i. Wetland B: No concerns observed. Water still slightly present within the 
swale.  

ii. Lake 14 Overflow: No concerns observed.  
 

h. Illicit Discharges: No issues observed. 
 

i. Spill Prevention: No issues observed. 
   

j. Maintenance Yard Inspection: No issues observed. 
 

k. Drain Pipes / Culverts: No issues observed. 
   

7. Non CDD Issues / Concerns Observed: No issues observed. 
 

8. Residential Complaints / Concerns / Work Order Requests: Below is the list of 
ongoing complaints / concerns / work order request for the past 3 months for FY 2020. 
 

Reported 
Date: 

Notified 
By: 

Issue Action Follow Up Action 

10/17/2019 Keri Abed Homeowner at 10262 Sago Palm 
reported that the aerator compressor is 
very loud and that a neighbor has 
turned it off. 

We put in a service request to Solitude on 
10/17/19 to service the unit. 

Changed out muffler with a 
new quiet style one and the 
sound reduced 
substantially on 11.01.19 

10/27/2019 Rob Reported that the aerator compressor 
for Lake 3 is loud again and needs to 
be looked at. 

Issue was reported to Solitude on 
10/28/19. 

Changed out muffler with a 
new quiet style one and the 
sound reduced 
substantially on 11.01.19 

10/29/2019 Mike 
Whitten 

Reported that several residents are 
complaining of a noisy aerator 
compressor at 10469 Washingtonia 
Palm (Lake 11). 

Issue was reported to Solitude on 
10/29/19. Asked to replace the lid seal. 

Noisy cooling fan was 
replaced along with lid seal 
on 11.01.19 

10/30/2019 Paul 
Ware 

Reported a piece of lania screen in the 
preserve behind their home.  

  None. 

11/4/2019 Joney 
Kelly 

Reported that the fountain lights in 
Lake 22 are flashing at night. 

Reported issue to Florida Fountains on 
11/04/19. 

  

26



12 
 

11/4/2019 Jim 
McDougal 

Called in with questions regarding the 
sidewalk safety letter he received. 

Spoke with Jim and on 11/05/19 and 
explained to him on what's going on. He is 
all set. 

None. 

11/4/2019 Andrea 
Binder 

Called in with questions regarding the 
sidewalk safety letter she received. 

Spoke with Andrea on 11/05/19 and 
explained to her on what's going on. She 
is all set. 

None 

 
9. Fish/Wildlife Observations:  

 Bass   Bream    Catfish   Gambusia 
 Egrets   Herons   Coots   Gallinules 
 Anhinga    Cormorant  Osprey   Ibis 
 Woodstork   Otter   1 Alligator   Snakes 
 Turtles   Other Species: Ducks______________________________ 

                           
 

10. Completed events in October / November: 
 

a. Inform Lake & Wetlands of any lake management concerns. Completed on 
10/10/19.  
 

b. Inform Vertex of any aerator issues. Completed on 10/10/19. 
 

11. Follow up & Upcoming event for November / December:          
 

a. Inform Lake & Wetlands of any lake management concerns.  
 

b. Inform Vertex of any aerator issues.  
 

12. Maintenance Technician Task List:    
 

a. 8/07/19: Remove and cut back all fallen tree branches on the perimeter fence 
around the irrigation pond. Work order 1367 pending November.  

 
b. 8/07/19: Have the vegetation growing around the control structure on Lake L-6 

cut back and removed. Work order 1367 pending November. 
 

c. 9/06/19: Cut back the willow trees and any other vegetation that is encroaching 
into the canals this winter. Work order 1360 pending January / February for 
lowest water levels.  

 
d. 10/09/19: Replace the rusting out grate between Lakes L-11 & L-12. 53”x35” 

Type D grate. Work order 1380. Grate has been ordered.  
 

e. 11/06/19: Replace the following roadway reflectors:  
 

i. Red/White marker in front of the clubhouse on Washingtonia Palm. 
ii. Red/White marker at the entrance of Sago Palm Way. 

27



13 
 

iii. Dual Amber marker in front of the clubhouse on Washingtonia Palm Way 
near the cart crossing. (Must order marker).  
 

f. Complete the following concrete repairs:  
 

i. Smooth out the chipped-up area with the grinder where the sidewalk meets 
the driveway at 10549 Wine Palm. 
 

ii. Fill in the small holes with concrete filler in front of 10537 Wine Palm. 
 

 
 

28



 
 
 
 

 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40


	HP Agenda Cover
	HP signed Summary Letter 11-25-2019
	HP Draft Agenda 11-25-2019
	HP Meeting Minutes 10.28.19
	HP north perimter fence gate proposal
	HP North Perimeter fence sunstate 14649
	Sunken Driveways combined
	Ficus tree in fence
	HP - Littorals in lake
	Heritage Palms - Littoral Map 11.12.19
	Heritage Palms - Lake L-6 Fence Repair Quote
	HP CDD - FMR - Inspection Date 11.05.19
	Heritage Palms - Lake Interconnects
	1135CDD_LAKE-8 INTERCONNECTS
	Layout1


	HP - Financial Report - 2019-10

